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Homestead Manor, built by Francis Giddens in 1809~1819, was designed in the Georgian
style. The design features bilateral symmetry, four by five bay organization. The
house has a wide gable roof with gable dormers and an attached two story entrance
porch with six fluted round columns and carved wood dentils at the eave. The
structure is three stories tall and the finished third story is built under the roof
eave. The center dormers at the front and rear feature palladian style triple
windows with multi-colored stained glass lights divided by narrow, decorative wood
muntins. The main entrance features a rectangular shape transom with colored glass
lights, decorative muntins, and the wide side lights repeat the same design.

The cellar room at the southwest corner has a brick floor and fireplace. This room
has an outside entrance and it is the same room where residents of the area took
refuge during a Civil War battle in 1862. The manor is constructed of hand made
brick with double brick bearing walls, four widths wide and brick partition walls

from the foundations to the attic floor. The interior walls are finished with plaster
on lath. The third story has been divided into two large rooms with a wide center
hall. The frame partition walls are finished with horizontal laid beaded shiplap
siding. The woodwork and moldings have been stained and painted and the doors and
baseboard moldings have been grained. The plaster finished walls on the first and
second stories have been painted and wallpapered.

The center halls are thirty-seven feet long and approximately twelve feet wide. There
are entrances at either end of the main entrance hall. A straight flight staircase
ascends the left side of the hall from the front main entrance. The second and
third floor staircases are identical with balustraded rails at the open well above
edch stairdase.” ' Thé staircades are ‘constructed of poplar and ash. They feature
jlg-saw cut wood spandrels and Georgian design wood balusters. The newel posts are
square ‘and ‘the handrails are ‘round. The ceilings are twelve feet tall. There are
nine fireplaces. The wood, handcarved mantels are original. The six panel wood
doors are approximately seven feet tall and all of the doors are built in the same
design. The fold-down beds have been removed from the wall closets. The colored
glass ‘Tights were added by Major James Akin in 1887. Major "Akin owned the property
until 19202 and credited with having added the present porches.

The library located on the right side of the entrance has been paneléd and the walls
have built-in bookcases. These were added by the present owner. The present dining
room and kitchen are adjoining rooms. A small closeted. staircase built in the
present kitchen leads to the bedroom suite above. The bedroom suite features a wide
partition of folding doors which are similar to the folding door for the large double
parlors located on the first floor at the left side of the main entrance. Walnut
floors on the first story have been restored, reverse side up. The hall floors are
ash and the other floors are poplar. Francis Giddens ‘disliked the color of the brick
and he palnted the exterlor a dark red and had the mortar joints penciled. The main
facade is’ riemish ‘bond brlck pattern "and the ‘Yemainder are common bond.

Homestead Manor is located adjacent to the highway. The gravel drive makes a wide
circle across the front lawn. There is a small boxwood garden in the center and the
drive is lined with tall trees. The restored 1880s West Harpeth schoolhouse }s .
located beyond the garden on the north side of the house. It was moved to this site

in 1971. original brick walks have been uncovered around the house and garden.
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The old slave quarters have been removed. The present owner raises livestock and
there are several old barns on the property. A former springhouse is well defined
by the remains of the stone floor and stone foundation walls. The Giddens graveyard
is located to the south of the house beyond the open fields. The lot and wooded
knoll to the north of the house is marked as the site of the Battle of Thompson
Station.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
Francis Giddens (1753-1860) married Mary White, daughter of Moses Poindexter White,

in Louisa County Virginia in 1782.

The Giddens family moved to Williamson County

in 1800 to settle on the Revolutionary War Grant awarded to Francis Giddens for his

service as a gunsmith.
many additional acres of land in Williamson County where they established their

plantation.

Williamson County where some of their descendents live today.

Francis Giddens and his son were surveyors and they bought

Fzancis and Mary had six children and each of them built fine homes in

Francis Giddens built a log house at Murfrees Fork, a tributary of the Harpeth River.
The family lived there while the large manor house was being built beginning in 1809.
The house was under construction for ten years, and when the construction work was

completed, this was the first large, slave built brick home in the area.

The hand-

some Georgian style manor house became a focal point for the community that grew

around it.
and proprietor for the first ordinary there and became Keeper of the Mails.

In 1819 Francis Giddens applied for and was granted license as owner of

This

community was eventually called Thompson Station, named for Dr. Thompson, a prominent

resident there in the early days.
Alabama Railroad line was built there in 1852.

Nashville Railroad today.

It became a shipping point when the Tennessee and

The original track bed passes diago-
nally across the Giddens land and the same route is used by the Louisville and

James Giddens and his brother Francis, Jr. were soldiers in the War of 1812. Their

grave markers in the family cemetery record their services.

James Giddens recorded

and marked the boundary line for Williamson and Maury County located to the south
side of the plantation.

Francis Giddens modeled his home after the early architectural styles built in Louisa

County, Virginia.
in Tennessee at the time it was built.
style of life the Giddens family had established in Tennessee.

The house had many unusual features and refinements rarely found
When the house was finished it reflected the
The large rooms, tall

ceilings and generous propertions of the center halls are indicative of the life

style of the period.

It was a large house for its time and place, and it has been

well preserved in its original form by all of the subsequent owners.

Unusual features of the house, which was a stagecoach stop, are the pull-down beds.
Built into the bedroom closets in the upstairs bedroom suites, this feature was
copies by Francis Giddens who had seen the same design in the 0ld Michie Tavern at
The rooms on the third floor were used for overnight

Charlottesville, Virginia.

travelers and guests.
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The Battle of Thompson Station was fought on the property March 5, 182?? Federal
troops commanded by Colonel John Coburn were on the north front. Confederate troops
commanded by General Nathan B. Forrest and General Earl Van Dorn were opposing them
from the South. The manor house was located in the middle of the battle scene
which included the hillside north of the house. Residents of the area took refuge
in the cellar room of the manor. Many of those present were related to the soldiers
that fought that day. The house. was used as a temporary hospital after the siege.
A cannon ball that crashed through the ceiling of the house during the battle is now
being used as a door stop.

The house belonged to Francis Gidden's daughter, Nancy Giddens Word, after 1830 and was
owned in subsequent years by descendents of the builder. It was sold to Major Thomas
Banks in 1861 and came.to be called the Banks Place during the Civil War era. The
many grave markers in the family cemetery recall the names of members of the Giddens
and Word families.

The house was purchased by the present owners in 1969, and has been well-preserved
and maintained by them. 1In recognition of its importance to the county, Homestead
Manor was awarded an historical marker by the Heritage Foundation of Franklin and
Williamson County.




